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ECONOMY, ENERGY AND FAIR WORK COMMITTEE 

SCOTLAND’S CONSTRUCTION SECTOR INQUIRY  

SUBMISSION FROM NATIONAL FEDERATION OF ROOFING CONTRACTORS SCOTLAND 
 
Economic impact of the sector  
1. How important is the construction sector in Scotland as an economic enabler? If 

possible, please provide evidence of knock-on multiplier impacts at local, regional and 
national levels, and explore the impact of the sector on national GDP performance. 

 
Construction is a very positive economic enabler which creates employment for 7.7% of Scotland‟s 
working population. 
 
Construction Scotland‟s strategy for 2019-2022 states “For every £1 spent on construction output, a 
further £2.94 is generated in the economy”. 
 
The NFRC is disappointed to see the lack of attention to maintenance of Scotland‟s buildings from 
homes to publicly owned buildings. If a proactive maintenance programme was in place across all 
buildings then it would generate significant positive economic activity in the Scottish economy. 
 
Scottish Housing Condition Survey 2017 – 50% of homes have disrepair to critical elements (which 
make them wind and watertight. 
 
Audit Scotland reported in 2018 that the NHS estate will need more investment than is likely to be 
available in future years and there was a maintenance backlog of  £899 million in 2017/18 across 
the whole estate. It also highlighted that a number of hospitals and other health facilities will require 
significant investment to ensure they remain fit for purpose.  
 
In 2016, the Scottish Police Federation (SPF) highlighted concerns regarding the condition of the 
buildings which the police work from citing decades of under investment as the reason. 
 
Procurement drives behaviours across the supply chain and therefore a more holistic view of the 
economic benefits of projects in Scotland, while costing slighty more capital expenditure, could 
deliver higher economic benefits which outweigh the additional capital expenditure. 
 
2. What are the causes of the sector’s productivity challenges? Can you suggest possible 

solutions?  
 
The lack of improvement in productivity in construction is often cited but Scottish Enterprise recently 
highlighted that the average GVA per employee in construction is £61,000 compared to an average 
of £53,000 for all other sectors. 
 
Procurement drives behaviours, therefore to further improve productivity in the Scottish construction 
industry, the first step to address would procurement, in particular to end the obsession with lowest 
tender price and ensuring fair payment throughout the supply chain. 
 
3. How effective is Scotland’s construction supply chain? Explore areas of gaps, 

duplication, etc.  
 

Much of Scotland‟s roof covering materials are imported to Scotland and there have been cases 
where the supply chain has failed due to demand exceeding supply which created significant lead in 
times. 
 
Planning of projects and better procurement could have gone a long way to address these issues by 
ensuring that the materials were ordered significantly in advance but with the roofing contractors 
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only being appointed down the project timeline, this is not possible and can cause delays as 
contractors cannot hold significant level of materials without contracts having been signed. 
 
4. What is the future economic outlook and implications of Brexit on the sector? 
 
The NFRC is concerned about the possible skills shortages in the roofing sector post-Brexit. 
However, the construction industry needs skills throughout the supply chain to ensure that projects 
are able to be constructed.  
 
The wide and diverse roles within construction need adequately skilled workforce as construction 
will be delayed if there is a gap anywhere in the construction supply chain. 
 
As a member of Scottish Contractors Group, the NFRC supports its stance post-Brexit, including the 
need for continued recruitment of skilled EU-nationals, while address our skills challenges by 
recruiting, training and retaining the next generation of home-grown talent. 
 
Another area of concern for the NFRC and its roofing supplier members is access to construction 
materials, of which 15% is imported from the UK and there is already evidence of stockpiling in 
anticipation of a „Hard Brexit‟. Leaving the Single Market and Customs Union, will lead to the 
imposition import and export tariffs, while a lack of parity of standards and regulations could 
increase manufacturing costs. To overcome these challenges, both Build UK and the Construction 
Products Association (which the NFRC is also a member of) believes that Scotland and the rest of 
the UK will require a strong manufacturing supply chain.  
 
Since 1973, the European Investment Bank and Investment Funds have invested around €7.8bn 
across the UK, attracting private sector investment and acting as a multiplier. The EIB has financed 
over 1000 projects, including urban regenration schemes. However, it is unlikely that Scotland will 
continue to receive further EU funding post-Brexit. Overall, the continued uncertainty caused by 
Brexit will have a negative impact on the pipeline of larger projects such as private office buildings 
that tend to be reliant on up-front investment decisions.  
 
5. The UK Industrial Strategy Challenge Fund and the linked Sector Deal for construction 

aim to address issues such as improving procurement practices, skills, exports and 
innovation. How do these impact on Scotland? 

 
The UK Industrial Strategy and related Sector Deal reflects the £600bn National Infrastructure and 
Construction Pipeline, the great majority of which does not apply to Scotland. Many of the themes 
are reflected in this response – for example, ending the pursuit of lowest initial tender price and 
moving to the pursuit of required outcomes instead.. 
 
Access to finance  
6. What are the sources of and barriers to accessing finance in the sector? We would welcome 

perspectives from all sizes of businesses from micro through to Tier 1.  
 
7. What are your views on payment terms and payment behaviours across the sector?  
 
Fair and transparent payment practices are essential for a thriving construction industry and a 
strong and sustainable supply chain.  
 
All Scottish Government contracts must require payment of valid contractor/sub-contractor invoices 
within 30 days throughout the supply chain.  All other organisations are encouraged to follow suit 
(Scottish Procurement Policy Note SSPN 8/2009, 28 October 2009). 
 
Technically payment terms are agreed by contracting parties but the truth is often considerable 
payment pressure is put on the supply chain through the procurement process. 
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There is anecodatal evidence that even then, payments are further delayed beyond contractual 
terms throughout the supply chain with members often receiving spurious reasons for these delays. 
 
This puts a financial burden on the supply chain in chasing outstanding payment which is not 
productive and ultimately, the client pays for as all costs will have to be included in costs otherwise 
companies will fail. 
 
In the case of retentions, the NFRC does not believe that Peter Aldous MP‟s Bill to ring-fence 
retentios in a third-party trust goes far enough and we support Scottish Contractors Group goal of 
zero cash retentions by 2023, though we think it should be much sooner. 
 
8. How effective is the financial management of large scale infrastructure projects and the 

mechanisms used e.g. project bank accounts?  
 
These provide a degree of security for the specialist contractor but at a cost and is papering over 
the cracks of the main contractor/management business models. 
 
Skills  
9. Does the sector’s skills planning model allow it to realise its full potential, in terms of 

attracting talent, meeting skill shortages, preparing for technological change? 
 

The NFRC supports, and participates in, Construction Scotland‟s Inspiring Construction programme 
which aims to highlight the various roles throughout the construction supply chain to school pupils ot 
help them make an informed decision regarding the potential careers. 
 
While this programme has been successful it needs to be expanded and to do so will require 
additional resources to make it a sustainable model. 
 
The roofing apprenticeship model, and training, is largely the same as it has been for years with no, 
or little, changes despite the recession which resulted in many companies ceasing to trade and 
others changing their business model to reflect the changed trading conditions. 
 
This means that new technology is often not taught within the college based element of courses and 
reliant on manufacturers/suppliers to provide this but without accreditation or checks and balances 
required to ensure they are used effectly and efficiently.  
 
The NFRC represents the full roofing sector and roofing disciplines which has contractors of various 
sizes. The smaller contractors, often working in the domestic market including slating, tiling and flat 
roofing with many employing apprentices on a regular basis.  
 
The Construction Skills Investment Plan (SIP) stated that apprenticeship models needed to be 
modernised to develop a more flexible model of Modern Apprenticeship delivery but these changes 
have not taken place yet which affects the number of contractors able to engage with 
apprenticeship model. 
 
A model should be developed which helps small and medium sized roofing companies to engage 
with apprentices throughout their training programme.  
 
The SIP also stated “As described earlier, the above factors site within a context of a high micro and 
small business base that is spread across Scotland. The challenge for industry and the education 
and skill system in working together to support the future growth of the sector requires a multi-
faceted and flexible approach, aligned to a common strategy.” 
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10. How does Scotland’s apprenticeship system contribute to the sector? Is it doing enough 
to meet equality challenges in the secor?  

 
Scotland‟s apprencticship system continues to contribute a great deal to the sector, with increasing 
numbers taking up apprenticeships. There is, however, a continuing need to ensure that the content 
of apprenticeship courses meets industry needs, balancing the sectors needs in terms of both 
numbers and content/quality of training.   
 
Procurement   
11. How do public procurement practices and procedures impact on the sector?  

 
NFRC believes that procurement drives behaviours through the supply chain. Tendering process 
often look only at the construction phase of a buildings life-cycle when in reality, the construction 
phase only represents a very small fraction of the life-cycle. The full life-cycle costs of a building 
should have a higher profile in the procurement process. 
 
Contracts awarded on low-cost puts significant pressures, not just financial, on the supply chain but 
the wider economic opportunities of contracts should have a higher weighting to create the right 
environment for employment of apprentices, skills development and innovation. 
 
12. Do you have any suggestions on opportunities to enhance procurement practices across 

the sector?. 
 
Reduce duplication in pre-qualification and put the emphasis on all requirements for proof of 
evidence of skilled trades.  
 
13. Considering the national infrastructure construction pipeline, is the planned pipeline sufficient? 

And has the sector got to the ability to meet the country‟s infrastructure needs to drive growth?  
 
Innovation   
14. What are your views on the Construction Scotland Innovation Centre?  
 
Activities of the Innovation Centre appear to be funding rather than industry-led. The NFRC fully 
appreciates the reasons for this but pursuing an industry-led model could allow the centre to pursue 
initiatives which would have maximum impact for the industry would be a better investment. 
 
15. Where are the opportunities for growth within sub-sectors, e.g. offsite construction?  

 
Pre-manufactured sub-assemblies such roof trusses and SIPS (Strustural Insulated Panels) through 
to complete roof and cladding systems present opportunities for our industry in terms of offsite. 
Such approaches can improve productivity, quality and health and safety, while reducing waste, 
weather-related delays, scaffolding/site set-up costs, accidents and snagging. 

 
16. How will technological changes (e.g. robotics, automation) impact on the sector? How 

can Scotland take advantage of this change? 
 
The use of manual handling equipment allows clients to specify larger and thicker materials which 
have better U-values therefore better insultation. 
 
However, we need to ensure that there is accredited training for such machinery and this training is 
included in the college based training of an apprenticeship. 
 
The use of drones for surveying and high-definition satellite imagery is a very positive move with 
many NFRC members employing this method for surveys of buildings. This can result in 
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maintenance issues identified, and undertaken, sooner to be benefit of the building and limiting 
damage therefore reducing the cost of maintenance of existing buildings.  


